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Ref: 8ARD-PM

Mr. Michael Ogletree
Director, Air Pollution Control Division
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment
4300 Cherry Creek Drive South
Denver, Colorado 80246
Emailed to:
Michael.ogletree@state.co.us and
cdphe_apcd_airpermitcomments@state.co.us 

Re:	EPA Comments on Draft Construction Permit 22WE0172 for the DCP Operating Company, LP – Canvasback Compressor Station

Dear Mr. Ogletree:

This letter provides EPA Region 8’s comments to the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment (CDPHE) on the subject permit action, which would approve the construction of a 255 million standard cubic feet natural gas compressor station to be located in Section 18, T5N, R66W,
Weld County, Colorado. The comment period runs from December 22, 2022 through January 21, 2023. The site location is within the Denver Metro/North Front Range nonattainment Area (Denver area) for the 2008 and 2015 ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). 

We have reviewed the draft construction permit documents and note that CDPHE is using air quality modeling to meet CDPHE’s requirement to demonstrate that the permit action does not cause violations of the NAAQS for particulate matter with diameters generally 2.5 micrometers and smaller (PM2.5) and for nitrogen dioxide (NO2). These pollutants were selected because they met the criteria for modeling as described in the current Colorado modeling guideline (Interim Colorado Modeling Guideline for Air Quality Permits October 2021, updated May 2022). Based on the review of the information available during the public notice period for this permit, the EPA Region 8 submits the following comments.

0. Ambient Air Quality Impact Analysis of Ozone: The submitted modeling checklist report indicates that cumulative air impact modeling was conducted for PM2.5 as well as NO2 to determine if the emissions from the proposed project would cause a NAAQS violation in the area surrounding the facility. The modeling checklist report indicates that this was done as a requirement to follow the current Colorado permit modeling guidance. 

Section 2 of the Interim Colorado Modeling Guideline for Air Quality Permits (October 2021, updated May 2022) discusses CDPHE’s authority to require an Air Quality Impact Analysis. Specifically, within Section 2, the modeling guideline cites to Colorado Regulation No. 3, Part B, § III.B.5.d:


…the preliminary analysis shall indicate what impact, if any, the new source will have (as of the projected date of commencement of operation) on all areas (attainment, attainment/maintenance, nonattainment, unclassifiable), within the probable area of influence of the proposed source…When the preliminary analysis includes modeling, the model used shall be an appropriate one given the topography, meteorology, and other characteristics of the region that the source will impact. Use of any non-guideline model required U.S. EPA approval under Section VIII.A. of Part A of this regulation.
	
Regulation No. 3, Part B, § III.B.5.d makes clear that CDPHE is required to conduct this preliminary analysis in all areas, within the probable area of influence of the proposed source.

[bookmark: _Hlk124938379]While CDPHE conducted modeling for PM2.5 and NO2 against their respective NAAQS standards as part of the required preliminary analysis, it does not appear that any analysis was done for precursors of ozone. Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) and NO2 are defined as precursors to ozone in Colorado Regulation No 3, Part A, § I.B.17. Because this proposed source is located within the Denver area and the proposed permit is a synthetic-minor New Source Review (NSR) permit where the pollutant that is limited is VOC, the EPA believes that Colorado’s Regulation No. 3 requires that CDPHE determine whether this proposed source would have an impact on the Denver nonattainment Area.

0. Permit Condition 20. Point 005, Activities 01, 02 and 03: Routine or predictable emissions (ROPE) is listed in the proposed permit as Point 005. This includes four separate activities: 01 (“Gas vented to the atmosphere during blowdowns and purging of compressors”), 02 (“Gas vented to the atmosphere during blowdowns and purging of pigging units”), 03 (“Gas vented to the atmosphere during blowdowns and purging of ‘other’ equipment”), and 04 (“Storage tank thief hatch openings in duration of less than 1 hour”). Each of these activities is required to comply with an annual “ton per year” limit (Condition 9) as well as an annual “volume per year” limit (Condition 14). Activities 01, 02, and 03 are required to monitor three parameters to be used to calculate emissions in order to demonstrate compliance with the limits in Condition 9 and Condition 14. These three parameters are the actual physical volume (V) between isolation valves for equipment associated during the blowdown, the absolute pressure (Pa) during actual conditions during of the actual physical volume during the blowdown, and the temperature at actual conditions in degrees Fahrenheit (Ta) of the actual physical volume during the blowdown.

Three of these activities are required to comply with Permit Condition 20. This permit condition contains an equation by which the monthly volume of gas emitted during a blowdown event is calculated.

After reviewing the permit, Region 8 has some concerns with the equation for calculating emissions and believes additional parameter monitoring will assure the intent of the requirements of Colorado Regulation 7 are met.

While the permit requires that Pa, Ta, and V are monitored, there is no requirement to assure that the pressure and temperature of the actual physical volume are vented at is as low as possible for any given actual physical volume. Pa and Ta in this equation are indicators of the mass of gas still available in the physical volume prior to venting. The actual physical volume between isolation valves for equipment associated during the blowdown should be a known and fixed volume. As Pa and Ta decrease for any given V, the mass of gas within that volume will be decreasing as well. Operators should be able to determine the lowest achievable Pa and Ta for each actual physical volume that would be subject to this permit.

EPA recommends that CDPHE require DCP to determine the lowest achievable Pa and Ta for each available actual physical volume at the facility and then ensure that the permitted ROPE activities do not occur until that Pa and Ta are reached. This will ensure that, for any given venting activity, the lowest possible mass of gas will be vented to the atmosphere.

Further, the equation in Permit Condition 20 should require that the volume of gas released be calculated on a per-event basis rather than on a monthly basis. The current equation only contemplates one Pa, Ta, or V per month. For those situations where the same V is vented more than once during a month, the equation does not discuss how to determine which Pa or Ta to use, if those values are not identical across the multiple events. The volume of gas released should be calculated on a per-event basis to assure that an accurate accounting of the mass of emissions released can be compared to the appropriate permit limit.

0. Condition 8 Annual Limits: The Annual Limits table in Condition 8 lists the limits in “pounds per year.” The EPA believes that this is incorrect and the limits should be stated as “tons per year.”

0. Notes to Permit Holder (#9): This note lists a table of Applicable Requirements and states that the proposed facility would be considered a True Minor source under the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) rules. PSD is a major NSR permitting program that would apply to sources that would be above the appropriate significant emission rate for criteria pollutants in areas that are in compliance with the corresponding NAAQS limit. 

The EPA believes that the information in this table is confusing to the operator and the public. The proposed facility is to be located inside the Denver area. Because VOC is a precursor pollutant for ozone, the proposed facility is not currently subject to PSD. The appropriate major NSR permitting program to determine the proposed facility’s compliance with would be nonattainment NSR permitting. The major source threshold for nonattainment NSR permitting is variable and dependent upon the severity of the area’s nonattainment designation. Currently, based on the source’s proposed potential to emit, the facility would be considered a synthetic minor source of VOC. This designation could change if the attainment status of the area the source is located in changes.

EPA recommends that only the applicable requirements to which the source is currently subject at the time of permit issuance are listed in the table in the Notes to Permit Holder (#9).










If you have questions or wish to discuss this further, please contact me, or your staff may contact Donald Law, of my staff, at (303) 312-7015 or at law.donald@epa.gov. 

							Sincerely,
						
							
							Adrienne Sandoval
Director
Air and Radiation Division
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